

# **HUDSON TAYLOR UNIVERSITY**

LIBRARY HANDBOOK 2023–2024

2855 Rolling Pin Lane, Suwanee, GA 30024 770-831-8882



# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	MESSAGE FROM LIBRARY SERVICES	1
ı.	INSTITUTIONAL OVERVIEW	2
	Mission Statement	2
	Institutional Goals	2
	Ethical Standards	2
	Tenets of Faith Location	3 4
	Facilities	4
	Authorization	4
II.	ORIENTATION TO THE LIBRARY	5
	Library Location, Hours, and Contact Information	5
	Library Mission Statement	5
	Library Vision Statement	5
	Library Core Values	5
	Library Goals and Objectives	6
I	Information Literacy Standards	7
III.	LIBRARY RESOURCES	8
	General Circulation Materials	8
	Reference Materials	8
	Reserved Materials	8
	Journals and Newspapers	9
	Computers and Audio-Visual Materials	9
	Electronic Databases	9
	OPAC (Online Public Access Catalog)	9
	Interlibrary Loan	9
	Other Libraries	
IV.	POLICIES FOR USERS	1:
	Who is the Hudson Taylor University Library Clientele?	1:
	Basic Library Behavior Expectations	1:
	Privileges of Library Users	12
	Responsibilities of Library Users	1:



# **MESSAGE FROM DIRECTOR OF LIBRARY SERVICES**

The Library Handbook is of vital importance to your education while you are here at Hudson Taylor University because the Library is an integral component of the university. Take time to familiarize yourself with this handbook so that you can save time as you use the library. Making regular use of the library will make you a better student and will also aid you in becoming more diligent in your study of God's Word (2 Timothy 2:15). Like most colleges in the United States, our library is cataloged according to the Library of Congress classification system. We have a selection of materials geared toward general and biblical studies. The books are mainly in English and Korean. We are continually acquiring new titles. We also provide access to Korean Studies Information Service System (KISS); National Library of Korea; and RISS National Digital Library.

Please know that I am here to help you. I will be happy to answer your questions, help you find material pertinent to your studies, and help in other ways that may fit your needs. I ask that you help me, also, byreturning borrowed books by the due date, and by caring for the library materials and equipment. Asyou study, as you read, and as you learn to "rightly divide the Word of truth," may you be greatly blessed and may those who hear you preach and teach His Word be led to a deeper understanding ofthe will of God.

In Christ,
Debra Giannone, MLS
Director of Library Services



# I. INSTITUTIONAL OVERVIEW

#### **MISSION STATEMENT**

Hudson Taylor University shall strive to glorify and love God in all its endeavors. As an institution of biblical higher education, it shall educate its students to serve Christ and fellow humankind toward the establishment of God's Kingdom. It shall equip those called to His service with the most relevant, culturally diverse, and up-to-date scholarship in biblical and mission studies. Hudson Taylor University shall foster the development of leaders who will bring the Gospel to the far corners of the world.

#### **INSTITUTIONAL GOALS**

- 1. To produce selfless leaders with missional focus who will dedicate their careers and lives to further our Lord's Great Commission.
- 2. To educate students who exhibit the theological competence and biblical understanding needed in a variety of contexts, whether ministerial or further graduate studies.
- 3. To provide a learning environment that is multilingual and culturally diverse.
- 4. To network, partner with and engage churches, citizens, and institutions, local and global.
- 5. To be an efficiently managed and financially ethical institution.

#### **ETHICAL STANDARDS**

Hudson Taylor University shall always strive to glorify and love God in all its endeavors. In furtherance of our stated Mission and Institutional Goals, the Board of Directors of Hudson Taylor University has resolved to adopt the following Ethical Standards which shall be applicable to and adhered to by all members of the University, including all full and part-time employees, faculty, officers, administrators and the Board of Directors.

#### **Standard 1: Honesty**

Hudson Taylor University recognizes that God is the ultimate judge of our intentions and actions. Worldly reputation and temporal recognition are mere derivatives of our earnest prayer to be judged by God with mercy and love. Therefore, as members of the University, we shall always be honest in our intentions and actions toward ourselves, students, and all those with whom we communicate. All records and data shall be created and maintained honestly andwith the highest level of integrity and competence by the University.

# **Standard 2: Mercy**

Hudson Taylor University recognizes that we are all sinners whose lives are redeemed solely by God's mercy and Christ's blood. Members of the University shall always look upon themselves and those around them with a merciful demeanor and be spiritually prepared to forgive others as God has forgiven them.



# **Standard 3: Financial Responsibility and Transparency**

Hudson Taylor University recognizes that all material and financial resources are given to us by God's Providence and Grace. Therefore, every member of the University shall always be transparent in handling matters of finance and in the use of University resources.

### **Standard 4: Avoidance of Conflict of Interest**

Hudson Taylor University recognizes that excessive personal profit and individual gain must be avoided in all affairs of the University. We exist to serve and to create servant leaders, not to gain wealth. All potential conflicts of interest Standard must therefore be fully disclosed to the Board of Directors. The Board must apply the strictest interpretation of applicable State and Federal laws in deciding matters involving conflict of interest.

# Standard 5: Compliance with the Law

Hudson Taylor University recognizes that adherence to these Standards clearly must lead to full compliance with all Federal, State and local laws regarding governance, operation and financial filing requirements. The University shall therefore strive to continually update its knowledge of these laws and maintain the highest level of compliance with them.

#### **Standard 6: Violation of Ethical Standards**

Hudson Taylor University recognizes that we must be ever-vigilant regarding violations of these Ethical Standards. All violations must be reported to the office of the President. All final adjudication on violations shall be made by the Board of Directors.

#### **TENETS OF FAITH**

HTU subscribes to the Tenets of Faith mandated by the Association for BiblicalHigher Education (ABHE):

- 1. We believe that there is one God, eternally existing in three persons: Father, Son, and Holy Spirit.
- 2. We believe the Bible to be the inspired, the only infallible, authoritative Word of God.
- 3. We believe in the deity of our Lord Jesus Christ, in His virgin birth, in His sinless life, in His miracles, in His vicarious atonement through His shed blood, in His bodily resurrection, in His ascension to the right hand of the Father, and in His personal and visible return in power and glory.
- 4. We believe that man was created in the image of God, that he was tempted by Satan and fell, and that, because of the exceeding sinfulness of human nature, regeneration by the Holy Spiritis absolutely necessary for salvation.
- 5. We believe in the present ministry of the Holy Spirit by Whose indwelling the Christian is



- enabled to live a godly life, and by Whom the church is empowered to carry out Christ's great commission.
- 6. We believe in the bodily resurrection of both the saved and the lost; those who are saved unto the resurrection of life and those who are lost unto the resurrection of damnation.

#### **LOCATION**

Hudson Taylor University's campus is located at 2825 Rolling Pin Lane, Suite 200, Suwanee, GA 30024.

### **FACILITIES**

The campus is housed in a two-building complex. The main building is 50,000 square feet, and houses the auditorium, seminar/event space, music recital room, IT/computer lab, art studio, dance studio, library, student lounge, student study rooms, and classrooms of varying sizes and capacity. The adjacent 5,500 square foot building will serve as future classroom space. These buildings are located on an 8.3-acre parcel of land, which provides the school with approximately 400 parking spaces and a large field with grass and trees.

#### **AUTHORIZATION**

Hudson Taylor University is authorized to operate in the state of Georgia by the Georgia Nonpublic Postsecondary Education Commission (GNPEC).

Hudson Taylor University is a candidate member of the Association for Biblical Higher Education (ABHE) and is pursuing candidacy for full accreditation status.

Hudson Taylor University is authorized under federal law to enroll nonimmigrant alien students by issuing Form I-20, with which students may apply for an F-1 Nonimmigrant Student visa.



# II. ORIENTATION TO THE LIBRARY

Welcome to the Hudson Taylor University Library. We look forward to working with you as you pursue the necessary educational credentials to serve God in your chosen field of ministry. We see the goal of our ministry as becoming co-workers with you as you develop the skills and knowledge which will prepare you for your lifetime of service in the Kingdom of God.

#### LIBRARY LOCATION, HOURS, AND CONTACT INFORMATION

The library is located in the Main Building of the Hudson Taylor University campus. The library's hours of operation are Monday through Friday 9:00am to 5:00pm, and Thursdays, 9:00am to 6:00pm. The Director of Library Services may be contacted as follows:

Ms. Debra Giannone, MLS Director of Library Services T. 770-831-8882 debra.g@hudsontayloruniversity.org

#### LIBRARY MISSION STATEMENT

The Hudson Taylor University Library exists to provide a wide range of materials and services designed to enhance and advance faculty members' and students' personal Christian lives and equip them for ministry and service, as well as provide a solid academic foundation in biblical, professional, and general studies.

#### LIBRARY VISION STATEMENT

The faculty, staff, and administration of Hudson Taylor University believe that the library is an active, integral, and educational facet of the university. Based on that belief, the library staff is striving to make the library the first source for scholarship and information, where students' needs are the top priority and faculty members find the resources essential for their teaching and research. In order to make this vision a reality, The Hudson Taylor University Library will maintain a comprehensive collection to support its curriculum and meet the needs of its users, and to become a state-of-the-art collegiate library in its use of electronic resources.

# **LIBRARY CORE VALUES**

**Integrity:** The Hudson Taylor University Library staff will conduct the business of the library according to biblical and Christian standards. Furthermore, the library staff will adhere to the financial policies of Hudson Taylor University and the financial guidelines established by our accrediting agency.

**Service:** The Hudson Taylor University Library staff will provide user-centered, prompt, responsive, and friendly service to the entire Hudson Taylor University community. We will respond to the evolving needs of the community with flexibility, innovation, and continual



reassessment.

**Access:** The Hudson Taylor University Library staff will provide unhindered and clear access to all forms of information while respecting individual privacy, autonomy, and free inquiry.

**Learning:** The Hudson Taylor University Library staff will educated and assist our users to identify, evaluate, and utilize information in their coursework, research, careers, and daily lives.

**Community:** The Hudson Taylor University Library staff will create a welcoming environment conducive to research, dialogue, and work by treating all members of the Hudson Taylor University community with dignity and honesty, and with respect for social and cultural diversity.

**Collaboration:** We actively seek partnerships to improve service and increase access to information.

#### **GOALS AND OBJECTIVES**

#### Goals

**Goal 1:** Provide expert assistance, instruction, and an innovative suite of user services which are responsive to the needs of our community and changing circumstances.

**Goal 2:** Build up resources of print and digital materials using selection criteria that reflect the academic priorities of the University, current collection strengths, and significant research in all areas of study pursued at the University.

**Goal 3:** Provide effective organization and presentation of information and collections.

**Goal 4:** Create and maintain a physical environment that fosters learning and research, and encouragesuse and interaction.

**Goal 5:** Communicate the library's services and resources effectively, expand outreach, and develop opportunities for our users to provide regular feedback about those services and resources.

**Goal 6:** Contribute to the academic, ethical, and cultural growth of the Hudson Taylor University community.

**Goal 7:** Secure the resources to meet Hudson Taylor University Library's goals and objectives.



# Objectives (The numbers in parentheses correspond to the goal or goals addressed by the objective.)

- To determine the information literacy competency of the HTU student body. (1, 3–7)
- To use the data collected from the Information Literacy Competency Survey to create an information literacy curriculum for HTU. (1, 3–7)
- To create and implement a schedule for library Orientation. (1, 4–7)
- To create the library's financial policies in cooperation with the CFO. (7)
- To grow the budget to address curricular and research needs. (1, 2, 4, 7)
- To evaluate the biblical studies collection through the examination of materials. (2- 4, 6, 7)
- To develop library outreach materials in a variety of modalities. (1, 5, 6)
- To increase the University community's awareness of issues related to copyright, fair use, open
  - access, and licensing. (1, 4-7)

### **INFORMATION LITERACY STANDARDS**

It is the duty of the Hudson Taylor University Library staff to make sure that all students are competent in information literacy. These standards were created by the Association of College and Research Libraries, a branch of the American Library Association.

College students must be information-literate learners who can:

- Determine the extent of information needed.
- Access the needed information effectively and efficiently.
- Evaluate information and its sources critically.
- Incorporate selected information into one's knowledge base.
- Use information effectively to accomplish a specific purpose.
- Understand the economic, legal, and social issues surrounding the use of information, and access and use information ethically and legally.



# III. LIBRARY RESOURCES

The library collection contains a wide variety of resources for use by all members of the Hudson Taylor University community. Currently, the library houses a collection of print books and journals, CDs, and DVDs. In addition to physical resources, HTU also provides access to a number of databases, including: Korean Studies Information Service System (KISS); National Library of Korea; and RISS National Digital Library. All library materials are available for use by the Hudson Taylor University community, and are subject to the guidelines of the library outlined elsewhere in this handbook.

### **GENERAL CIRCULATION MATERIALS**

Most of the library collection is included in the general circulation section. These materials include items which may be checked out of the library by users subject to the guidelines outlined elsewhere in this handbook. These items are in the process of being catalogued in the online catalog. Library personnel are available during hours of operation to assist users in locating and checking out such materials. Users may retrieve these materials from the shelves, but should not reshelve items themselves. In addition to ensuring the proper reshelving of general circulation materials, this practice will allow the staff to note damaged items on a more regular basis and will allow for a more accurate evaluation of the usage demands of the items in the collection.

#### REFERENCE MATERIALS

The library also maintains a collection of reference materials including general and specialized encyclopedias, dictionaries, statistical and demographic studies, concordances, standard commentary sets, periodical guides, and the like. Reference materials will not be allowed to circulate. Faculty members may request, subject to the approval of the Director of Library Services, the use of certain reference materials for a particular class period, but the materials must be returned immediately at the close of that class session, and the Director of Library Services is not obligated to honor every such request.

# **RESERVED MATERIALS**

The library maintains a group of items that are placed on reserve at the request of various professors. Access to these items is limited in order to provide equal access to multiple users. When a professor requests that an item be placed on reserve, the item is promptly shelved in a separate location accessible only to library personnel. Items on reserve may be used in the library only. They may be checked out overnight during the last hour the library is open, however, they must be returned within the first hour the library is open on the next day. Fines for reserved materials returned late will be significantly higher than those assigned for circulating items returned late. Failure to return reserve materials could result in the loss of library privileges.



#### **JOURNALS AND NEWSPAPERS**

The library maintains a collection of local newspapers, other newspapers related to Christianity, and scholarly journals which include current research in the various emphases of the degree programs offered. These items are not to be checked out of the library. Professors who wish to use articles from these items in their classes are encouraged to do so, with the understanding that the material cannot leave the library. Users may read the material in the library and may copy it subject to copyright laws.

#### **COMPUTERS AND AUDIO-VISUAL MATERIALS**

The library maintains a small collection of audio-visual materials such as CDs and DVDs. Requests for the use of audio-visual equipment are made through the Educational Technology (ET) department. Maintenance of this equipment is also handled by that department. Computers are available in the library for student use. There is also wifi access in the library so students can use their own personal computers.

#### **ELECTRONIC DATABASES**

Hudson Taylor University has access to a number of databases including: Korean Studies Information Service System (KISS); National Library of Korea; RISS National Digital Library; and the Library and Information Resources Network (LIRN). Students are made aware of these databases through orientation sessions and various other means of communication. Training in the use of these databases will also be available. Students in good standing, faculty, and staff can obtain the necessary passwords by contacting the library. These databases are accessed through the library page on the Hudson Taylor University website (www.HudsonTaylorUniversity.org). Free databases and other quality sites appropriate to our curriculum are also linked through the library webpage.

# **OPAC (ONLINE PUBLIC ACCESS CATALOG)**

An OPAC (Online Public Access Catalog) of our library holdings as well as a tutorial for its use is available through the library page of the Hudson Taylor University website (www.hudsontayloruniversity.org).

#### **INTERLIBRARY LOAN**

Every effort will be made to secure interlibrary loans for items requested by students. Since the Director of Library Services belongs to the Association of Christian Librarians, she can request materials on their listserv. All copyright laws of the United States government will be observed and obeyed with regard to providing materials through interlibrary loan. Students will be responsible for all costs incurred with the interlibrary loan process and will be responsible for any and all fines should any be applicable. To apply for an interlibrary loan see the Director of Library Services or one of the assistants for the proper forms. All required information must be supplied



before the process of interlibrary loan can begin.

#### **OTHER LIBRARIES**

Geographically, Hudson Taylor University is located within easy driving distance of many prestigious university and seminary libraries. While most libraries will not allow check-out privileges, many willallow students to use their facilities. See the Director of Library Services for more information. Hudson Taylor University also belongs to the Reciprocal Borrowing Program through the Association of Christian Librarians, so students can borrow materials through that program as well. Students are also encouraged to obtain library cards for their local libraries which will afford them access to other quality databases as well as a broad range of curricular resources.



# IV. POLICIES FOR USERS

#### WHO CAN USE THE HUDSON TAYLOR LIBRARY?

The library serves several different kinds of library users. Each of the following paragraphs describes a category of library users and outlines the unique circulation policies pertaining to that category. In case multiple requests are made for the same resource, the requests will be honored in the order in whichthe users are listed and discussed below and then in the order in which the request was made.

Faculty who are teaching courses at Hudson Taylor University (or who have signed a contract to teach beginning no more than 3 months in the future) may borrow general circulation items in accordance with established circulation rules for faculty. In addition, they may continue to renew the material as long as another user has not requested the material. Faculty who are teaching courses might be able to procure certain reference items and other restricted library resources for use in their classes, but these arrangements have to be made in writing with the Director of Library Services, and the materials are notto leave the campus. The materials must be returned immediately after the close of the class sessionthat day. The Director of Library Services is not obligated to honor such requests. Faculty who are not currently teaching classes may borrow items from the library in accordance with the established circulation procedures outlined elsewhere in this handbook.

Students who are currently taking classes may borrow items from the library in accordance with the established circulation procedures outlined elsewhere in this handbook. Staff may borrow items from the library in accordance with the established circulation procedures outlined elsewhere in this handbook. Alumni, Board Members, and other friends of the university make up the Special Library User category. These users may borrow items in accordance with the established circulation procedures outlined elsewhere in this handbook. These users may renew items one time. In addition, if any student or faculty requests a resource which has been borrowed by a special library patron, that patron must return said resource to the library within 2 working days of the request or within 5 working days of the request if the patron is returning the resource by mail.

### **BASIC LIBRARY BEHAVIOR EXPECTATIONS**

Library users are expected to abide by the same behavior expected of the users of any library. Users should work quietly, should engage in a minimum of personal discussion, and should be respectful of the needs of the library staff and other users in terms of space to study, access to library materials, and so on. In addition, the following specific requirements will be observed:

- No open containers of food or drink of any kind is allowed in the library.
- 2. Audio equipment is permitted in the library as long as headphones are used and it is



- not disturbing toothers. Anyone using portable computers should turn off the sound.
- 3. Users are requested to step outside the library to use their cell phones.
- 4. Users should handle library materials with care. Pages should not be bent. Users should not write inlibrary materials. When copying materials, users should take care not to damage the spines.
- 5. Users should return items to the library in the condition in which those materials existed whenchecked out.

Anyone repeatedly violating these guidelines will be reprimanded formally by library staff and may be asked to leave the premises if the problem persists. In extreme cases, a user's library privileges can be suspended for a period of time to be determined by the Director of Library Services, in consultation withthe Director of Student Affairs or Director of Academic Affairs.

#### **PRIVILEGES OF LIBRARY USERS**

Library users are able to check out general circulation materials according to the following guidelines:

- Students may check out a maximum of 5 books for 21 days.
- Faculty, Staff, and Administration may check out a maximum of 10 books for 30 days.

Materials may be renewed twice unless otherwise noted. You must bring the materials to the library inorder to renew them. Users needing materials beyond these time limits may seek special permission from the Director of Library Services.

Members of the Hudson Taylor University community are welcome to use the resources of the library at any time during regular hours of operation. Hours of operation will be posted and are subject to change to accommodate our students and staff.

Library users are entitled to prompt, informative, and pleasant assistance from the library staff uponrequest.

#### **RESPONSIBILITIES OF LIBRARY USERS**

Users are expected to abide by the general guidelines outlined above in this handbook. In addition, library users are expected to treat the library staff with due courtesy and respect. Library users are reminded that the Director of Library Services is a member of the faculty with the full privileges and responsibilities pertaining thereunto. The Director of Library Services should be treated as a colleague by other faculty and with the respect due a faculty member by the other members of the Hudson Taylor community.

Library users are expected to handle the library resources, including materials in the collection, the physical plant of the library, the furniture, and the equipment, with appropriate care.



Fines may be established by the library committee with approval of the Academic Affairs Committee. The amount of these fines will be published and posted in the library. Library users are expected to pay any assigned fines in a timely manner. Students will not be allowed to enroll for additional studies if library fines remain unpaid. After the completion of coursework, a student will not officially graduate, nor will a transcript be provided, until all financial obligations have been resolved, including library fines.

Lost materials will be assessed at full replacement value and should be paid in a timely manner. Failure to do so could result in the same lost privileges as those for not paying library fines. Hudson Taylor University reserves the right to charge a library fee to be paid in accordance with all other financial obligations.